
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, JUNE 4, 2018 

IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations   
1. Movie Concept by Dustin Hills – History of West Branch Bears Football 
2. Safety Committee Presentation – Jose Gongora 
3. Workers Compensation Insurance – Kyle Austen 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting May 21, 2018. 
2. Resolution 1718 – A Resolution Approving A Liability Insurance Proposal with ICAP 
3. Resolution 1719 – A Resolution Approving Workers Compensation Insurance Proposal with 

IMWCA.  
4. Motion to Approve Cigarette Permit Renewals for Fiscal Year 2019. 
5. Motion to Approve Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Public Hearing: A Public Hearing on the matter of a Rezoning of the following 

described parcel located at 116 N.1st Street, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa.  
Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 to RB-1. 

2. First Reading, Ordinance 754 – Approve the Rezoning of the following described 
parcel located at 116 N. 1st Street, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; Rezoning parcel 
#0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 Central Business District to RB-1 Residential 

Business District. 
3. Motion to Suspend the Rules, and collapse the 2nd and 3rd readings of Ordinance No. 

754. 
4. Second Reading, Ordinance 751, Amending Chapter 69.08 entitled “No Parking Zone” 

(add 67) to prohibit Semi Truck and other parking on Tidewater Drive.  
5. Second Reading, Ordinance 752 Amending Chapter 76 (sec. 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 

76.14) the Current Bicycle Regulations to Include the Operation of Skate Boards.  
6. Resolution 1706 – A Resolution Approving Employee Salary Adjustments for Extra 

Duties Assigned and Required.  
7. Resolution 1720 – A Resolution Approving Partial Pay Estimate Number 2 in the 

Amount of $362,865.81 to Needham Excavating Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvement 
Project. 

8. Resolution 1721 – A Resolution Approving Change Order Number 3, Revised in the 
Amount by $9,672.30 on the Cubby Park Improvements Project. 

9. Motion to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Partners of 
“Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events”. 

10. Discussion Item: Staff Seeking Direction in responding to an Unsolicited Proposal 

from Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC for the services of site preparation. 
11. Discussion Item: Planned Unit Development 
 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               May 21, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                               7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin invited the 

Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: 

Council members:  Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jodee Stoolman and Brian Pierce were present.  Jordan 

Ellyson was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond 

Jones, Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Park & Recreation Director Melissa 

Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin and Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Home Rule Proclamation - Mayor Laughlin reiterated the importance of the Home Rule in Iowa and shared that 

this year marks its fiftieth year of allowing local government municipal control of its cities.  Laughlin then read 

the Home Rule proclamation. 
 
Main Street Market Place Analysis – Kevin Rogers presented the survey and explained how the data was 

analyzed.  Rogers said the survey results are available on the Main Street CDG website for further review. 
 
Summer Library Programs – Library Director Nick Shimmin presented the library’s summer calendar and said 

their program kicks off June 1st.   Shimmin invited the Council and community to an open house to meet the new 

youth librarian and wishing the current youth librarian, Becky Knoche best wishes on her new endeavors on 

Tuesday, May 29th at the library beginning at 7:00 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None.   

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting May 7, 2018. 

Motion to approve the Appointment of Levi Kleinmeyer to the West Branch Fire Department as a Cadet. 

Motion to approve the Class C Liquor License with Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales Privileges for Cedar’s 
Edge Golf Course Inc. located at 19 Greenview Ln, West Branch, IA 52358. 

Motion to approve (Hoover’s Hometown Days) – Outdoor Liquor Permit Request for Brick Arch Winery located 

at 116 W. Main Street, West Branch, IA 52358. 

Motion to approve the Home Rule Proclamation 

Approve Claims Report. 
   
EXPENDITURES     5/21/2018  
 
ALLIANT ENERGY     WATER TOWER     9,330.83  
AMAZON      BOOKS, PROGRAM SUPPLIES    198.53  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      1,475.49  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY    MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    121.38  
BP AMOCO     VEHICLE FUEL     403.48  
BRET F STOUT     STREET REPAIR     795.00  
CEDAR RAPIDS PHOTO COPY IN    COPIER MAINTENANCE    73.28  
CHAUNCEY BUTLER POST 514    FLAGS      80.00  
CJ COOPER & ASSOCIATES    DRUG TESTING     127.30  
DEARBORN NATIONAL INSURANC   LIFE INSURANCE     68.15  
DEMCO      PROGRAM SUPPLIES     176.93  
EAST CENT INTERGOVT ASN.    GRANT WRITING CONTRACT    283.50  
EBSCO INDUSTRIES, INC    MERCHANDISE CREDIT    695.67  

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

FEHR GRAHAM     308 - PV PARK CONST MGMT    3,198.50  
FRED'S FEED & SUPPLY LLC    SUPPLIES      17.13  
GLOBAL SOFTWARE     TAC 10 MAINT 6-18 TO 5-19    1,272.00  
HARRY'S CUSTOM TROPHIES LT    SOCCER MEDALS     165.00  
HAWKINS INC     CHEMICALS     674.40  
HOLLYWOOD GRAPHICS    SHIRTS      1,894.30  
HY-VEE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE    CONCESSION SUPPLIES    87.45  
IOWA ONE CALL     UTILITY LOCATION SERVICE    76.50  
JC CROSS CO     BLOWER REPAIR     52.22  
JOHN KEVIN DOLAN     LIBRARY PROGRAM     350.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.    RECYCLING APR 2018     4,285.25  
KELTEK INC     TOUGHBOOK COMPUTERS    10,089.93  
KINGDOM GRAPHICS LLC    VEHICLE DECALS     100.00  
LENOCH & CILEK     TREE INSTALLATION     26.97  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC    VACCCUMN TRUCK RENTAL    1,854.00  
MENARDS      SUPPLIES      83.90  
OASIS ELECTRIC LLC     SERVICE CALL     70.00  
PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL IN    PEST CONTROL CITY OFFICE    95.18  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC    LAB ANALYSIS     781.00  
RIVER PRODUCTS COMPANY INC    ROADSTONE     316.02  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB     LAB ANALYSIS     26.00  
UNITED LABORATORIES    MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    1,269.80  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     21.82  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD    OFFICE & PROGRAM SUPPLIES    1,170.01  
USA BLUE BOOK     MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    198.12  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC   DVDS, PROGRAM & MAINT SUPPLIES   239.23  
WATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED    PHOSPHATE     2,635.00  
WELLMARK     CREDIT- HEALTH INSUROR FEES    13,399.74  
WEST BRANCH TIMES     ADVERTISING/LEGAL PUBLICATION   626.16  
WEX BANK      VEHICLE FUEL     1,701.52  
 
TOTAL            60,606.69  
 
PAYROLL      5/18/2018      55,633.81  
 
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
NEEDHAM EXCAVATING, INC.    308-PV PARK CONSTRUCTION    276,843.04  
 
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES         393,083.54  
 
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND   47,648.32 
022   CIVIC CENTER   580.89 
031   LIBRARY   9,290.65 
110   ROAD USE TAX   4,913.43 
112   TRUST AND AGENCY  20,585.42 
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY 280,041.54 
600   WATER FUND   17,396.21 
610   SEWER FUND   12,627.08 
 
GRAND TOTAL   393,083.54 
 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, 

Stoolman, Miller.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Public Hearing: A Public Hearing on Amending the Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:37 p.m.  There were no public comments.  Laughlin closed the public 

hearing at 7:38 p.m. 

 

Resolution 1713 – Amending the Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018./Move to action. 

Edgar explained the general government expenses increased due to costs associated with replacing the city 

administrator.  Debt Service expense increased due to payments required on loans obtained after the FY18 budget 

was completed and revenue increased due to increasing our bond issuance above the budget amount. 



 

 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1713.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Pierce.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1714 – Authorizing the Transfer of Funds./Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1714.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Miller, Stoolman, 

Pierce.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

First Reading, Ordinance 751, amending Chapter 69 – Parking Regulations./Move to action. 

Chief Horihan said he notified area businesses about the ordinance change and had only received positive 

comments.  Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve first reading of Ordinance 751.  AYES:  Pierce, 

Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

First Reading, Ordinance 752 amending Chapter 76 - Bicycle Regulations./Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve first reading of Ordinance 752.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, 

Stoolman, Miller.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

First Reading, Ordinance 753 amending Chapter 65 – Stop or Yield Required./Move to action. 

Chief Horihan stated that three additional stop signs had already been placed at the intersection of West Orange 

Street and Ridge View Drive.  He further explained that when the streets were extended, the intersection was 

intended to be a four way stop, but only one sign had been posted.  In reviewing the Code, it was determined that 

the intersection had not been added to Chapter 65 and therefore not enforceable.  

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve first reading of Ordinance 753.  AYES:  Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Miller, Pierce.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Miller motioned to collapse the second and third reading of Ordinance 753 since the signs have been posted and 

the issue resolved.  Motion by Miller, second by Stoolman.  AYES:  Miller, Stoolman, Pierce, Goodweiler.  

Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.  Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve the 

second and third reading of Ordinance 753.  AYES:  Pierce, Goodweiler, Miller, Stoolman.  Absent:  Ellyson.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 
     ORDINANCE 753 

ORDINANCE REGULATING STOP OR YIELD REQIRED 
 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish and designate Stop and /or Yield on through streets; and  
 
WHEREAS, Stop or Yield required shall mean, every driver of a vehicle shall stop unless a yield is permitted by this ordinance before entering an 

intersection identified in this ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to pass legislation regulating the no parking zones within the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 
1. Amendment.  Section 65.02 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby adding subsection fifty-Seven (57) with the following: 

 

  57.  On Orange St and Ridge View Dr. at the intersection of Ridge View Dr. and Orange St. 
 

2.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 

  repealed. 
 
3.  Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not  
  affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading: May 21, 2018 
 
Second reading: May 21, 2018 
 
Third Reading: May 21, 2018 
        _________________________________ 

        Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

Motion to Approve Simply Summer Special Event Application./Move to action. 

Parks & Recreation Director Russell said that although the application was received late and changes to the plan 

were made to disallow camping, she had no concerns with the event.  Russell further stated that the event would 

have little to no impact on city resources. 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, Stoolman, Pierce.  Absent:  Ellyson.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Discussion Item: Hoover Hometown Days Update and Schedule. 

Russell updated the Council on Hoover’s Hometown Days planning and schedule and stated that new 

entertainment would be hitting the stage but no other major changes would occur.  Russell encouraged all vendors 

and parade participants to sign up early. 

 

Resolution 1715 – A Resolution Approving Various Contracts for the Hoover Hometown Days Celebration in the 

Amount of $800./Move to action. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1715.  AYES:  Pierce, Goodweiler, Miller, 

Stoolman.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1716 – A Resolution Approving Engineering Services Agreement for 2018- 2019 Bridge Inspection 

and Rating./Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1716.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Pierce, Miller.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1717 – Approving the Main Street Iowa Program Agreement./Move to action. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1717.  AYES:  Stoolman, Miller, Pierce, 

Goodweiler.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported on the Gross-Wen Technologies in Skokie, Illinois site visit as compared to the Nano2 technology 

pilot project in Tipton.  Both systems have beneficial components but Tipton’s pilot program did show a 

significant reduction in sludge which generates high levels of ammonia which is of concern with the City’s 

current system.  Jones said the task group will be looking at financing strategies and potential pilot projects to 

meet DNR requirements. 

 

Jones also reported that he had met with the partners of Little Lights on the Lane and Cedar’s Edge to prepare a 

proposal to be presented to the Council in June.  

 

Jones also shared a letter from Crestview Care Initiatives on concerns over screening from Cubby Park.  

Additional City Administrator reports can be found on the city’s website.   

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson reported that he had not heard back from French Renneker yet on the engineering services performed for 

the West Branch Village project.  He also said that he was still working on updating the Urban Renewal Plan and 

it was almost ready for Council approval. 

 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

Laughlin said he would like to get moving on the Croell site clean-up as soon as possible.  He said that now that 

Croell has vacated the property, it is in need of grading and removal of the concrete.  Laughlin suggested 

working with a local excavator who has the proper equipment to help with the cleanup and possibly crushing the 

concrete into gravel for future use or sale to help offset the cleanup costs.  Laughlin asked on the status of the 



 

 

land exchange time frame.  Olson responded that the new facility has not passed its final inspection and therefore 

deeds cannot be transferred until the occupancy permit has been issued.  

 

Stoolman asked if there was any money put aside to install welcome signs to West Branch similar to the one by 

the high school.  Rogers, Executive Director of CDG stated that recently their group had been bequeathed a sum 

of money from a local resident to put toward a new sign on the entrance to the City from the interstate.  Rogers 

was not able to give any additional information at this time.  Stoolman also asked why the City Office did not 

have a Facebook page.  She commented that most residents rely on social media to get news and asked that one 

be created since most all of the other departments of the City already have one too.  Other Council members 

agreed and directed staff to move forward with the idea. 

 

Goodweiler asked for a status update on the old Casey’s building on East Main Street.  Olson said that Casey’s 

was required to clean-up the contamination and that is most likely preventing the sale of the building. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Pierce, second by Goodweiler.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 8:34 p.m.   

                           _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1718 – A Resolution Approving a Liability Insurance 

Proposal with ICAP. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  May 30, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

West Branch has been a member of the Iowa Communities Assurance Program (ICAP) for 

approximately four years.  Our insurance policy period coincides with the City fiscal year 

of July 1 to June 30.  For the past four years our premiums have been in the range of 

around $38,000 to $41,000.  The City received $36,000 for a claim during the current 

fiscal year.  The premium for the next fiscal year will be about $43,100. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1719 – A Resolution Approve Workers Compensation 

Insurance Proposal with IMWCA 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  May 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Great News!!! 
 
West Branch has been a member of the Iowa Municipalities Workers’ Compensation 

Association for approximately four years.  Our insurance policy period coincides with the 

City fiscal year of July 1 to June 30.  For the past four years our premiums have been in the 

range of around $30,000 to almost $50,000.  The City had experienced some high claims 

that resulted in high Work Comp premiums.  The City created a Safety Committee and hired 

Jose Gongora as a consultant to perform safety and health consulting services with the 

expectation that Workers’ Compensation claims would be significantly reduced.  Through 

the efforts of Jose and the Safety Committee and some good fortune, the Work Comp 

premium for fiscal year 2019 will be about $19,000, a reduction of $30,000 from the prior 

year’s premium.    

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve this Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 3 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Cigarette Permit Renewals for Fiscal Year 2019.   

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  May 30, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Approve FY19 Cigarette Permit renewals for:  

 Kum & Go LC dba Kum & Go #254 

 Fisher’s Market Nauvoo IL Inc. dba Dewey’s Jack & Jill 

 Casey’s Marketing Company, dba Casey’s General Store #3463 

 Shivji LLC, dba BP Amoco. 

 

Renewals effective July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

   

 Consent Item 4 



 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  May 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

  

Consent Item 5 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: A Public Hearing on the matter of a re-zoning of 

the following described parcel located at 116 N. 1st Street, West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa.  Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-

015-0 from CB-1 to RB-1. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  May 30, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Hearing / Close Hearing 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 1 

BACKGROUND:  

David Poppen and wife Kami, have several rental properties in Iowa City, West Liberty 

and West Branch.  They recognize the need for affordable rental properties in West Branch 

and have offer accepted at 116 N. 1st St. contingent on the ability to rezone the property.  

The property is currently zoned CB-1, which allows for rental property on the upper floor 

of the building.  The Poppen’s would like to remodel the lower level for living space 

making the building a duplex.  Rezoning to RB-1 would be needed to accomplish this.   

 

On May 1, 2018, Planning & Zoning approved the request contingent upon it meeting the 

required set-back of 25 feet from the front property line.  It was determined that the 

vestibule on the front of the building is only 19.5 feet, and thus the Poppen’s took their 

case to the Zoning Board of Adjustment on May 15, 2018.  The Board approved their 

request for a variance on the set-back for the vestibule only with additional contingencies 

as to not allow the front of the building to change in any way with regard to the 25 foot set-

back requirement.  On May 29, 2018, Planning & Zoning held a public hearing on the 

rezoning and there was no public comment on the matter. 

 

Due to time constraints relating to land purchase, private investment being placed on 

hold, and apparent public acceptance it is being requested that City Council condense 

public reading process into one reading.  



 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE 

WEST BRANCH ZONING CODE. 

 

 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the West 

Branch Planning and Zoning Commission in the Council Chambers at the City Office, 

located at 110 N. Poplar Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m.. On Tuesday, May 29, 

2018.  The public hearing will discuss the proposed rezoning of the following described 

parcel:  East ½ of Lot 3, Block 34 West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, more commonly 

known as 116 N. 1st Street.  Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 to RB-1. 

 

 

 YOU ARE FURTHER NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the City 

Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, in the Council Chambers at the City 

Office, located at 110 N. Poplar Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m.. On Monday, June 

4, 2018.  The public hearing will discuss the proposed rezoning of the following described 

parcel:  East ½ of Lot 3, Block 34 West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, more commonly 

known as 116 N. 1st Street.  Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 to RB-1. 

 

 All interested persons are invited to attend these meetings and be heard on the 

aforementioned proposed adoption of the amendment.  Further information regarding 

same may be obtained by contacting the West Branch Deputy City Clerk. 

 

 

/s/ Leslie Brick 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

by West Branch City Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading, Ordinance 754 Approve the Rezoning of the following 

described parcel located at 116 N.1st Street, West Branch, Cedar 

County, Iowa; Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 

Central Business District to RB-1 Residence Business District.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk & Kevin Olson City Attorney 

DATE:  May 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

David Poppen and wife Kami, have several rental properties in Iowa City, West Liberty and 

West Branch.  They recognize the need for affordable rental properties in West Branch and 

have offer accepted at 116 N. 1st St. contingent on the ability to rezone the property.  The 

property is currently zoned CB-1, which allows for rental property on the upper floor of the 

building.  The Poppen’s would like to remodel the lower level for living space making the 

building a duplex.  Rezoning to RB-1 would be needed to accomplish this.   
 
On May 1, 2018, Planning & Zoning approved the request contingent upon it meeting the 

required set-back of 25 feet from the front property line.  It was determined that the vestibule 

on the front of the building is only 19.5 feet, and thus the Poppen’s took their case to the 

Zoning Board of Adjustment on May 15, 2018.  The Board approved their request for a 

variance on the set-back for the vestibule only with additional contingencies as to not allow 

the front of the building to change in any way with regard to the 25 foot set-back 

requirement.  On May 29, 2018, Planning & Zoning held a public hearing on the rezoning 

and there was no public comment on the matter. 
 
Due to time constraints relating to land purchase, private investment being placed on hold, 

and apparent public acceptance it is being requested that City Council condense public 

reading process into one reading.  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 754 
 
AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 116 N. 1ST STREET FROM CB-1 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT TO 

RB-1 RESIDENCE BUSINESS DISTRICT. 

 

 WHEREAS, David and Kami Poppen (“Poppen”) have petitioned the City of 

West Branch for a zoning district amendment for 116 N. 1st Street, said parcel being 

legally described as:   
 

East ½ of Lot 3, Block 34 West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa (the 

 “Parcel”); 
  

 WHEREAS, Poppen has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in an 

RB-1 Residence Business District, in place of an CB-1 Central Business District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended the City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa: 
 
 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show the Parcel being located in a RB-1 Residence Business District in place of an CB-1 

Central Business District.  
  
 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

publication as by law provided. 
 
 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 

this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this 

ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 
 
Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2018. 
 
 First Reading:   June 4, 2018 

 Second Reading: June 25, 2018 

 Third Reading: July 9, 2018 

             

      ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: ___________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to suspend the rules and collapse the 2nd and 3rd readings 

of Ordinance No. 754.  (This would need 4 votes to pass and should 

be placed after the first reading  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk & Kevin Olson City Attorney 

DATE:  May 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Due to time constraints relating to land purchase, private investment being placed on hold, 

and apparent public acceptance it is being requested that City Council condense public 

reading process into one reading.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

    
 

              REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading, Ordinance 751, Amending Chapter 69.08 entitled 

“No Parking Zone” (add 67) to prohibit Semi Truck and other 

parking on Tidewater Drive 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  May 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Second Reading 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Tidewater drive is a narrow road that does not have street lights. It does have 

industrial type of traffic and is used by large trucks and semis. The city has received 

complaints where semis were parked on Tidewater, just East of Baker. This 

interferes with visibility and the traffic flow at that intersection.  The businesses are 

well off the traveled portion of Tidewater Drive and this ordinance would not 

interfere with their business sparking. Recommend the following gets added to our 

No Parking Ordinance.   

   
69.08 No Parking Zones. 

 

New provision 

67.  Both sides of Tidewater Dr. East of Baker Ave.  Parking would be allowed 

during special events, when authorized by the City Council or the Chief of Police. 

(Example- Kites over West Branch)   

 

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

New provision 

67.  Both sides of Tidewater Dr. East of Baker Ave.  Parking would be allowed during 

special events, when authorized by the City Council or the Chief of Police. (Example- 

Kites over West Branch)   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 751 

 

ORDINANCE REGULATING NO PARKING ZONES. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish Parking 

Regulations within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch; and 
 
 WHEREAS, No Parking Zones shall mean, no stop, stand, or parking of a vehicle 

in any of the following designated no parking zones except when necessary to avoid 

conflict with other traffic or in compliance with the direction of a peace officer or traffic 

control signal; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to 

pass legislation regulating the no parking zones within the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. Amendment.  Section 69.08 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby adding subsection 

sixty-Seven (67) with the following: 
 

67.  Both sides of Tidewater Dr. East of Baker Ave.  Parking would be allowed 

during special events, when authorized by the City Council or the Chief of Police. 

(Example- Kites over West Branch)   
 
2.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and 

in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
3.  Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 

ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 
 
4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  May 21, 2018 
 
Second reading: June 4, 2018 
 
Third Reading: June 25, 2018 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading, Ordinance 752, Amending Chapter 76 entitled 

“Bicycle Regulations” (amending subsections 02, 10, 11 and 14) to 

include the “Operation of Skate Boards”. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  May 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
We are trying to get a handle on kids ridding skateboards and riding bicycles at 

night.   Thinking of a $65.00 dollar fine, and would be handled as an unscheduled simple 

misdemeanor.       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Second Reading 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

 

Added Language 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

  

 

Added Language 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

Added Language 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 752 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING BICYCLE REGULATIONS. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish Bicycle 

Regulations within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bicycle Regulations shall apply whenever a bicycle is operated upon 

any street or upon any public path set aside for the exclusive use of bicycles, subject to 

those exceptions stated herein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the intent of this amendment is not change the regulations regarding 

bicycling rather it is to include regulations related to the various forms of Skateboarding. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to 

pass legislation regulating the bicycle and skateboard within the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. Amendment.  Section 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 76.14 of the Code of Ordinances is 

hereby amending section seventy (70) with the following: 
 

76.02 TRAFFIC CODE APPLIES.  Every person riding a bicycle or using a 

skateboard or in-line skates upon a roadway shall be granted all of the rights and 

shall be subject to all of the duties applicable to the driver of a vehicle by  the  laws 

of  the State declaring  rules of  the  road applicable  to vehicles or by  the traffic 

code of the City applicable to the driver of a vehicle, except as to those provisions 

which by their nature  can  have  no  application.   Whenever such person 

dismounts or stops from a bicycle or using the skateboard or in-line skates, the 

person shall be subject to all regulations applicable to pedestrians. Skateboards and 

in-line skates shall not be allowed on city Streets, 20 minutes before dusk till 30 

minutes after dawn. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.234)  
 
76.10 TOWING. It is unlawful for any person riding a bicycle, skateboard or in-

line skates to be towed or to tow any other vehicle upon the streets of the City.  
 
76.11 IMPROPER RIDING. No person shall ride a bicycle, skateboard or inline 

skates in an irregular or reckless manner such as zigzagging, stunting, speeding or 

otherwise so as to disregard the safety of the operator or others. 
  
76.14 SPECIAL PENALTY. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter 

may, in lieu of the scheduled fine for bicyclists, skateboarders, or in-line skates or 

standard penalty provided for violations of the Code of Ordinances, allow the 

person’s bicycle to be impounded by the City for not less than five (5) days for the 

first offense, ten (10) days for a second offense and thirty (30) days for a third 

offense.  

 

2.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and 

in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 



 

 

 
3.  Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 

ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 
 
4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  May 21, 2018 
 
Second reading: June 4, 2018 
 
Third Reading: June 25, 2018 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 
 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1706 – A Resolution Approving Employee Salary 

Adjustments for Extra Duties Assigned and Required.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

DATE:  May 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The Deputy City Clerk (Leslie Brick) and the Building Official (Terry Goerdt) have been 

executing additional task and responsibilities vacated by the departure of the Zoning 

Administrator (Paul Stagg) who has been gone for 18 months.  The City no longer has a 

Zoning Administrator position and the dollars that were paid for those duties were never 

reassigned.  Therefore, this recommendation and measure would assign those dollars to 

reflect the new duties picked up by the City Deputy Clerk ($4,000 additional pay is being 

recommended) and the Building Official (an additional pay of $1.00 an hour is being 

recommended).  

These recommendations would not be effective until July 1st 2018 of the new fiscal year, 

and will have a minimal impact on the FY-19 budget.  

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

   

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1706 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING EMPLOYEE SALARY ADJUSTMENT 

 

WHEREAS, The Deputy City Clerk and the Building Official provide administrative 

and technical support for the City Office and the City’s Permit Process; and  

 

 WHEREAS, The Deputy City Clerk and the Building Official has assumed additional 

Zoning Administration duties including additional record keeping, site review, building 

permitting, building inspection work orders and general planning coordinating, including 

providing staff support to the Planning and Zoning Committee; Board of Adjustments; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrator acknowledges the impact and importance of these 

duties and contributions to the city organization; and  

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve an increase $4,000 salary adjustment for 

the Deputy City Clerk and a $1.00 an hour increase for the Building Official in order to 

account for the additional duties assigned and required;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned resolution is hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor is 

directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City.   

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 4th day of June, 2018. 

   

  

      

_________________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1720 – A Resolution Approving Partial Pay Estimate 

Number 2 in the Amount of $362,865.81 to Needham Excavating 

Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvements Project. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Cody Buelt, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  May 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This is the second pay estimate for work at Cubby Park completed by Needham Excavating. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1720 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PARTIAL PAY ESTIMATE NUMBER 2 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $362,865.81 TO NEEDHAM EXCAVATING INC. FOR THE 

CUBBY PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the 

construction contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) 

by the West Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 

2018 in the amount of $2,945,427.39; and 

 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating has declared that said project has started and 

work has been rendered in accordance with drawings and specifications on the Project, 

based on observations West Branch project managers and the project managers of Fehr 

Graham who are contracted with the City of West Branch to oversee the construction 

process. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch, approved Partial Pay Estimate 

Number One (1) in the amount of $276,843.04 to Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, 

IA is approved on May 7th; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to accept the Pay Estimate 

Number Two (2) in the amount of $362,865.81 and the project is now approximately 24% 

complete.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, 

that Partial Pay Estimate Number Two in the amount of $362,865.81 to Needham 

Excavating Inc. of Walcott, IA is approved. 

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of June, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 



 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1721 – A Resolution Approving Change Order Number 

3, Revised in the Amount By $9,672.30 on the Cubby Parks 

Improvements Project. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation 

DATE:  May 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This change order for work at Cubby Park is recommended to cover two items as follows: 
 
Booster pump – the water system pressure at Cubby Park is not sufficient to operate the 

proposed irrigation system. The project specifications required the contractor to conduct 

testing required to operate their proprietary system as each system is different. Testing was 

completed and found to be substantially insufficient. The specifications were written such 

that if a pump was required, it would be paid for separately. This change order is to cover 

that cost. Note that the cost for this type of pump for this type of system often runs $3,000 

to $5,000.  
 
12” Storm Sewer – the detention pond outlet system consists of two pipes at specific 

elevations and grades to throttle the release of flow downstream. The lower pipe was 

designed as 12” RCP but the bid item was inadvertently omitted from the list of quantities, 

thus there was not a unit price on the contract. This was a small quantity, so seems 

comparatively high to other pipe on the project with much larger quantities, but such a 

difference in unit price is very common and expected. The unit price is also lower than the 

15” RCP of similar quantity.  
 
We feel the proposed prices are fair and recommend approval. 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1721 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 3, REVISED IN 

THE AMOUNT BY $9,672.30 ON THE CUBBY PARKS IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT. 

 

 WHEREAS, Needham Excavating, Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the 

construction contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) 

by the West Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 

2018 in the amount of $2,945,427.39; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council subsequently approved Change Order 

No. 1 on May 7, 2018 to reflect a Value Engineering decrease in the project scope for a 

price in the amount of $126,000; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council subsequently approved Change Order 

No. 2 on May 7, 2018 to reflect a decrease in the project price in the amount of $20,100; 

and   

 WHEREAS, Change Order Number Three, Revised has been reviewed and 

recommended by the contracted Engineering firm of Fehr Graham in the amount of 

$9,672.30; and    

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said change order. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the City Council approves a change order with 

Needham Excavating, Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvements project for West Branch, IA 

in an amount not to exceed $9,672.30   

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of June, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 

the Partners of “Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events”. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator  

DATE:  May 29, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND: Public/private partnerships take many shapes, and public incentives 

/investments vary from project to project based on its own merits.  Rule of Thumb typically 

reflect incentive packages that range from 7% - 10%.  However, there are several examples 

of public incentives that are well beyond these percentage examples.    

$2 Million Project  $2.5 Million Project $3 Million Project $3.5 Million Project 

7%      -    $140,000 7%      -    $175,000 7%      -    $210,000 7%      -    $245,000 
8%      -    $160,000 8%      -    $200,000 8%      -    $240,000 8%      -    $280,000 
9%      -    $180,000 9%      -    $225,000 9%      -    $270,000 9%      -    $315,000 
10%    -    $200,000 10%    -    $250,000 10%    -    $300,000 10%    -    $350,000 
11%    -    $220,000 11%    -    $275,000 11%    -    $330,000 11%    -    $385,000 
12%    -    $240,000 12%    -    $300,000 12%    -    $360,000 12%    -    $420,000 
13%    -    $260,000 13%    -    $325,000 13%    -    $390,000 13%    -    $455,000 
14%    -    $280,000 14%    -    $350,000 14%    -    $420,000 14%    -    $490,000 
15%    -    $300,000 
16%    -    $320,000 
17%    -    $340,000 
18%    -    $360,000 
19%    -    $380,000 
20%    -    $400,000 
21%    -    $420,000 
22%    -    $440,000 
23%    -    $460,000 
24%    -    $480,000 
25%    -    $500,000 

15%    -    $375,000 
16%    -    $400,000 
17%    -    $425,000 
18%    -    $450,000 
19%    -    $475,000 
20%    -    $500,000 
 

15%    -    $450,000 
16%    -    $480,000 
16.7% -    $501,000 
 

14.5% -    $504,000 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

 

 

Jerry & Tammy Sexton         May 25, 2018 

Erin Morrison-Vincent & Jason Vincent 
 
“Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events” 

19 Greenview Ln 
West Branch, IA 52358 
Office: (319) 631-4984 

 

Topic: Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Potential Development of an Event Center in 

West Branch. 

Attn:  To the Officer(s) / Investors authorized to sign for and on behalf of “Cedar’s Edge Golf 

Course & Little Light’s Events”. For the purposes of establishing an initial conceptual agreement 

structure that will be used  as an outline for a future negotiation of a formal development 

agreement subject to City Council Approval and continued support. 

Whereas, “Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events” is a joining of two local businesses to 

form Limited Liability Partnership for the special purpose of developing, constructing, and 

operating a wedding, events, and golf club house venue within the City of West Branch, Iowa; 

and 

Whereas, the City of West Branch has as one of its City Goals “Developing inviting High Profile 

Visually Impactful Projects: Including Projects that Establish West Branch as a Destination, 

Branding and Other Projects that Reflect Sound Use of Tax Dollars”.  Additionally, the City seeks 

to promote the public interest of assisting business interest grow employment opportunities, and 

industry productivity with its city limits.   

 

Terms of “Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events” 

1. “Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events” will agree to verify site control of the 

project, and will limit any future development agreement term(s) to expire should the 

corporate entity dissolve, sale its interest, or defunct the ownership and/ or the 

corporate entity. 
 

2. “Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events” agrees to develop the aforementioned 

wedding, events, and golf club house venue at the quality and commercial standards of 

the city’s building code.  As well as assume the construction and related development 

cost. 
 

3. Contingency upon dates and events of Little Light’s choosing, Little Light’s agrees to 

provide each the City, the School District, and a Civic Group (of their choosing) with one 

free event a year. 



 

 

 
4. “Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events” agrees to make a Total Cash 

Investment of 30% - 40% of the project, with the remaining derived from financing and 
other investments.   
 

5. “Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & Little Light’s Events” agrees to develop a project that 
represents a Grand Total Investment of $2.5 million – $3.5 million. 
 

Terms of the City of West Branch 

1. The City of West Branch agrees to utilize its economic development authority to award, 
credit, waiver or tax rebate all or portions of the aforementioned project. 

 
2. The City of West Branch agrees to consider incentives that reflect an annual proportional 

investment for a term not to exceed 10 years. 
 

3. The City of West Branch agrees to consider a total Investment of 7% - 20% of the overall 
project cost. 

 
4. The City of West Branch agrees to open an annual public forum /public meeting to 

receive a business update from “Little Lights on the Lane”.   
 

5. The City of West Branch agrees to participated conceptually with incentive(s) for a 
project that represents a Grand Total Investment of $2.5 million – $3.5 million 
 

Again, this agreement is not intended to explore every detail of a potential development 

agreement.  Instead it is intended to be the starting point of an on-going negotiation, which will 

consider several options for incentives that could make an investment package.  Although, public 

/private partnerships takes many forms, and public incentives may vary from project to project 

based on its own merits, typical public incentives range from 7% - 10% of total investment.  

Percentages over this amount are usually accompanied with equity shares, first rights of refusals 

in business decisions, and/or minority voting rights within the business entity in some form.  It 

should also be noted: this agreement is not binding and is open interpretation.  The Signature 

lines of this agreement only signify a good faith effort in an attempt to negotiate the 

aforementioned terms basis of a development agreement.  It is understood that the City Council 

is the only body who can approve such an agreement.  Therefore, the City Council will need to 

review and approve any negotiated development agreement. 

Sincerely,       Accepted; 

_______________________________    ___________________________ 

Redmond Jones II      Erin Vincent  

City Administrator      Managing Partner 

City of West Branch       

___________________________ 

        Jerry Sexton 

Date: _______________________    Managing Partner 

        Little Lights on the Lane, LLP 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion: Staff Seeking Direction in responding to an Unsolicited 

Proposal from Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC for the services of 

site preparation.      

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Rodger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  May 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company with more than 

130 locations in six states, and employs its own crew that not only pours foundations and 

walls but constructs plants.  Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East 

Green Street which is ranged north to south between Main Street and College Street.  While 

planning for a plant expansion at that site, the city proposed a land swap.  Instead of having 

this industrial use expand its operations in this transitional area that exist between a 

celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the National Historic Register, and a 

well-established neighborhood known for its mature tree line and eclectic housing; the city 

pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park property for the 

aforementioned 4 acre site.  The swap is nearing to conclusion, in the meantime we can 

consider site preparation services to make the site more enticing to potential developers.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion: Planned Unit Development 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  May 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

The origins of PUDs in American communities can be traced to British movements during the 

1950s. The developments in Britain's new communities dealt with the locations of industrial 

elements and how they were publicly dictated before building ever began in order to uphold 

an economic base. 

PUD as a regulatory process is a means of land regulation which promotes large scale, unified land 

development by means of mid-range, realistic programs in chase of physically curable, social and 

economic deficiencies in land and cityscapes. Where appropriate, this development control promotes: 

 A mixture of both land uses and dwelling types with at least one of the land uses being regional in 

nature 

 The clustering of residential land uses providing public and common open space 

 Increased administrative discretion to a local professional planning staff while setting aside present 

land use regulations and rigid plat approval processes 

 The enhancement of the bargaining process between the developer and government municipalities 

which in turn strengthens the municipality's site plan review and control over development for 

potentially increased profits due to land efficiency, multiple land uses, and increased residential 

densities. 

Frequently, PUDs take on a variety of forms ranging from small clusters of houses combined with open 

spaces to new and developing towns with thousands of residents and various land uses. However, the 

definition of a PUD does not take into consideration these types of developments unless they fit into a 

category of size ranging from 100 to 200 acres (40 to 81 ha). In a PUD the property owner owns the 

land the dwelling sits on 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 11 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Industry
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Economic_base


 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 


